
 

 

 
 
 
 
March 25, 2010 

 
Re:     10RFP71997YC-BL, Jail Inmate Physical Healthcare Services 

 
Dear Proposers: 

 
Attached is one (1) copy of Addendum 5, hereby made a part of the above 
referenced 10RFP71997YC-BL, Jail Inmate Physical Healthcare Services 

.   
 

Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions in the 10RFP71997YC-BL, Jail 
Inmate Physical Healthcare Services referenced above remain unchanged and in full 
force and effect. 

 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
William E. Long, Jr., CPPB 
Chief Assistant Purchasing Agent   
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This Addendum forms a part of the contract documents and modifies the original RFP 
documents as noted below: 
 

 The proposal submission due date has been changed 
from; Wednesday, March 24, 2010 @ 11:00 AM to 
Wednesday, April 14, 2010 @ 11:00 AM. 

 
 The Evaluation and Recommendation committee, after 

reviewing and rating the proposals submitted, will 
require oral presentations of the three (3) highest ranked 
proposers.  The committee also reserves the right, prior 
to award recommendation, to visit one of the sites that 
the recommended proposer currently is performing the 
services requested in this proposal.  The expenses for 
staff to travel to the site must be borne by the proposer. 

 
 

QUESTIONS 

QUESTION: What is the County’s targeted award date for the contract? 

RESPONSE: Between April 14th and July1st, 2010  

QUESTION: What is the County’s targeted start date for the contract? 

RESPONSE: Between July and September, 2010. 

QUESTION: Please provide a copy of the current health services contract for the Fulton 
County Jail Complex (Jail), including any exhibits, attachments, and 
amendments. 

RESPONSE: Copy will be available  

QUESTION: Please provide (by year) the amounts and reasons for any paybacks, 
credits, and/or liquidated damages the County has assessed against the 
incumbent vendor over the term of the current contract. 

RESPONSE: There are none. 
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QUESTION: Please provide a copy of the Foster vs. Fulton County Consent Order 
referenced in RFP Section 3.3.5.A. 

RESPONSE: Will forward to you via email. 

QUESTION: In addition to Foster vs. Fulton County, is the Jail subject to any other 
court orders or legal directives?  If “yes,” please provide copies of the 
order/directive. 

RESPONSE: Yes, Harper v Fulton County 

QUESTION: How many lawsuits pertaining to inmate health care at the Jail — frivolous 
or otherwise — have been filed against the County and/or the incumbent 
medical provider in the last three years? 

RESPONSE: Information unavailable at this time.  

QUESTION: Please provide two years’ worth of historical data describing the inmate 
population, broken down by gender. 

RESPONSE: Available data for 2009.  

  
JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUNE JULY AUG SEPT OCT NOV DEC 

2,642 2,671 2,637 2,646 2,686 2,773 2,898 2,973 3,096 3,059 3,053 2,910 

 The women account for 13% of the total population.  

QUESTION: We understand that the Contractor must meet all requirements 
established by the National Commission on Correctional Health Care 
(NCCHC) and the American Correctional Association (ACA).  Is the Jail 
currently accredited by either association?  If “yes,” please provide the 
most recent accreditation date for the facility. 

RESPONSE: Yes.  Re-accreditation due this year, 2010. 

QUESTION: We appreciate the County providing its minimum staffing requirements as 
outlined in RFP Section 3.3.5.BB (Page 43).  Please also provide current 
health service staffing schedules by facility, shift, and day of the week for 
the Jail Complex. 

RESPONSE: NCCHC   re-accredited 2006 
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 ACA  accredited 2006 

QUESTION: Please provide a listing of the current health service vacancies by position 
for the Jail. 

 
RESPONSE: Currently, 2 Medical Assistants, 6 LPNs, 2 RNs 

QUESTION: Are any members of the current health service workforce at the Jail 
unionized?  If yes, please provide the following. 

 A copy of each union contract 

 Complete contact information for a designated contact person at each 
union 

 The number of union grievances that resulted in arbitration cases over 
the last 12 months 

RESPONSE: No union. 

QUESTION: Please provide current wage/pay/reimbursement/seniority rates for 
incumbent health service staff at the Jail. 

RESPONSE: See contract. 

QUESTION: Please confirm that the time health services staff members spend in 
orientation, in-service training, and continuing education classes will count 
toward the hours required by the contract. 

RESPONSE: All training will be in accordance with NCCHC standards. 

QUESTION: Please provide the capacity and average daily population of each of the 
Jail’s segregation units. 

RESPONSE: 208 bed capacity    

QUESTION: Please provide an inventory of office equipment (e.g., PCs, printers, fax 
machines, copiers) currently in use at the Jail and identify which 
equipment will be available for use by the selected provider. 

RESPONSE:   
There is a (1) large/high volume copier in the medical 
administrative area and (1) large/high volume copier in medical 
records.  The vendor is responsible for supplying copy paper 
and office supplies.  The county is responsible for 
maintenance. 
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QUESTION: Please provide an inventory of medical equipment (e.g., blood pressure 
cuffs, ultrasound, x-ray machines, etc.) currently in use at the Jail and 
identify which equipment will be available for use by the selected provider.  

RESPONSE:  
General X-ray Machine with table 

 Digital film Processor 
 
 Three Dental Operatories and all associated machinery 
 General Dental X-ray Machine 
 Panorex  X-ray Machine 
 Auto Claves (2 steam type) 
 Ultrasonic Cleaners (2) 
 
 No current warrantees on any equipment except the Digital X-

ray Processor. 

QUESTION: How does the health unit staff at the Jail currently access the Internet: 
through a facility network or through connectivity provided by the 
incumbent Contractor?  Who is financially responsible for such Internet 
access? 

RESPONSE: Facility network.  The county is responsible for the internet access. 

QUESTION: Please identify the current sub-contracted provider(s) of laboratory 
services. 

RESPONSE: Quest 

QUESTION: How are dental services currently provided: (a) onsite, with permanent 
County-owned equipment; (b) onsite, through mobile dentistry (PLEASE 
IDENTIFY VENDOR); or (c) offsite? 

RESPONSE: County owned equipment. 

QUESTION: How are optometry services currently provided: (a) onsite, with permanent 
County-owned equipment; (b) onsite, through mobile optometry (PLEASE 
IDENTIFY VENDOR); or (c) offsite? 

RESPONSE: Grady Memorial Hospital via clinic appointment. 

QUESTION: How are dialysis services currently provided: (a) onsite, with permanent 
County-owned equipment; (b) onsite, through mobile dialysis (PLEASE 
IDENTIFY VENDOR); or (c) offsite? 
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RESPONSE: Currently offsite.   Vendor is responsible for dialysis services.    

QUESTION: Does State of Georgia or Fulton County law mandate any special rates 
(e.g., Public Aid, Medicare, Workers Compensation, or other discounted 
rates, etc.) for the offsite treatment of County inmates?  If “yes,” please 
provide a copy of the statute, law, regulation, contract, or other legal 
document that requires community providers to accept such rates. 

RESPONSE: No such mandate. 

QUESTION: Please identify which of the specialty and chronic care clinics listed in RFP 
Section 3.3.5.N (Page 32) are currently conducted onsite, and indicate 
how many hours per week each clinic is held. 

RESPONSE: The Jail prefers to have as many specialty and chronic care clinics 
on-site as is possible for the vendor to provide. 

QUESTION: Does the Jail have special medical housing, observation beds, and/or an 
infirmary?  If “yes,” please provide the number of such beds. 

RESPONSE: 44 bed infirmary 

QUESTION: Does the Medical Unit qualify as an Infirmary as per NCCHC definitions, 
i.e., do the staffing levels, monitoring methodology, rounding frequency, 
etc., comply with NCCHC infirmary standards for Jails? 

RESPONSE: Yes 

QUESTION: On average, how many inmates are housed in the Medical Unit/Infirmary 
on a daily basis?  

RESPONSE: Medical Infirmary admission      50/month 

 Mental health admission   68/month 

QUESTION: RFP Section 3.3.5 indicates that mental health services are excluded 
from the scope of the RFP.  How are these services provided to Jail 
inmates? 

RESPONSE: Separate contract. 

QUESTION: Please provide the following information about medication administration. 

 Who administers medications, e.g., RNs, LPNs, medical assistants? 

 How are medications distributed, i.e., pill line or med pass?   
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 Where does medication distribution take place, i.e., do medication 
carts go to the housing units or do inmates come to the medical units? 

 How often is medication distributed each day?   

 How long does it take to perform the average medication distribution 
process? 

RESPONSE: LPNs distribute medication. 

 Meds are distributed at the housing unit door. 

 Carts go to the housing unit. 

 Meds distributed twice a day. 

 There is a two hour window for each medication pass. 

QUESTION: How many medication carts will the County make available for the use of 
the incoming vendor?   

RESPONSE: Vendor will supply medication carts. 

QUESTION: Please provide copies of the following documents. 

 The formulary currently in use at the Jail 

 A current formulary management report 

RESPONSE: Current formulary provided in previous response. 

 No current management report. 

QUESTION: Who is financially responsible for psychotropic drugs: the medical 
contractor or the mental health contractor? 

RESPONSE: The medical contractor. 

QUESTION: If the medical contractor bears the cost of psychotropic drugs, please 
describe the County’s plan for ensuring that the mental health contractor’s 
psychiatrists abide by the medical contractor’s formulary and prescribing 
practices.  

RESPONSE: The formulary is determined by the Pharmacy and Therapeutics 
Committee whose members include Medical Director, Chief 
Psychiatrist, Director of Health Services and the Pharmacist. 
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 Psychiatrists prescribe psychotropic medication.  They determine 
their own prescribing practices. 

QUESTION: With regard to the licensed onsite pharmacy required by RFP Section 
3.3.5.Q (Page 37): 

 Does space for the onsite pharmacy currently physically exist? 

 If “yes,” is the pharmacy currently operating? 

 Exactly where is the current onsite pharmacy located? 

 Please explain why no Pharmacy Technicians appear in the required 
minimum staffing list outlined in RFP Section 3.3.5.BB (Page 43). 

 Please provide an inventory of equipment (automated and manual) 
currently in use at the onsite pharmacy and identify which items will be 
available for use by the selected Contractor. If available, please 
include make, model, age, condition, and current maintenance 
agreement cost. 

 Please provide copies of the policies and procedures currently in place 
for the management of the onsite pharmacy. 

 Does the current Contractor utilize bingo cards or a vial-type system 
for pharmaceuticals? 

RESPONSE: The current pharmacy is operational and located on the medical unit.  
It is equipped by the vendor.  The vendor is expected to operate the 
pharmacy in accordance with NCCHC standards.  The will develop its 
own policy and procedure. 
 

QUESTION: Please identify (and provide contact information for) the pharmaceutical 
wholesaler that currently supplies inventory to the onsite pharmacy. 

RESPONSE: The current vendor purchases drugs from wholesalers of their 
choosing.  The selected vendor will establish its own purchasing 
network. 

QUESTION: How will existing drug inventory in the onsite pharmacy be handled at the 
time of contract transition, i.e., will the incoming Contractor be required to 
purchase existing inventory as of the contract start date?  

RESPONSE: The incoming vendor and the outgoing vendor may negotiate the 
transition of inventory. 
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QUESTION: Does the onsite pharmacy house inventory for both the drugs ordered by 
the medical Contractor AND the psychotropic medications provided and 
paid for by the mental health Contractor?  

RESPONSE: The drugs will be purchased by the medical vendor and will be paid 
for by the medical vendor. 

QUESTION: Is the staffing complement at the onsite pharmacy (i.e., the medical 
Contractor’s employees) also responsible for the inventory, security, 
dispensing, etc., of the psychotropic medications provided and paid for by 
mental health Contractor? 

RESPONSE: Medical vendor will be responsible for pharmacy services. 

QUESTION: What is the average number of inmates receiving pharmaceutical 
treatment each month for the following conditions? 

 Hemophilia 

 Hepatitis C 

 HIV/AIDS 

RESPONSE: HIV/AIDS  151 

QUESTION: Please provide monthly statistical data for each of the following 
categories. 

 Number of inpatient offsite hospital days 

 Number of outpatient surgeries 

 Number of outpatient referrals 

 Number of trips to the emergency department 

 Number of ER referrals resulting in hospitalization 

 Number of ambulance transports 

 Average number per month of inmates undergoing dialysis treatments 

RESPONSE: Vendor is not responsible for hospitalization, ambulance, outpatient 
services or emergency room services. 

 
 Monthly information from 2009 is available for dialysis visits: 
 Jan 19  Jul 12 
 Feb 16  Aug 2 
 Mar 7  Sep 3 
 April 8  Oct 0 



 

 

10  OF 15

 May 2  Nov 2 
 Jun 17  Dec 13 

QUESTION: Please provide historical health services cost data broken out into at least 
the following categories. 

 Total offsite care 

 Total pharmaceutical expenditures 

 Laboratory services 

 X-ray services 

RESPONSE: See copy of current contract for available costs. 
 

QUESTION: Please confirm our interpretation of RFP Section 3.3.5.E (Page 27), i.e., 
that the Contractor is not financially responsible for the cost of any 
services (inpatient or outpatient) provided offsite at a Grady Health 
System facility, as “this treatment is considered covered by the amount of 
funds allocated in the current year's budget for the operational costs of 
Grady Hospital (Fulton-DeKalb Authority). 

RESPONSE: The above interpretation is correct. 

QUESTION: Please confirm who will be financially responsible for the following 
services under the new contract: the County or the Contractor? 

 Inpatient hospitalization, other than at a Grady Health System facility 

 Outpatient surgeries 

 Non-surgical outpatient referrals 

 ER visits, other than to a Grady Health System facility 

 Offsite dialysis 

 Offsite diagnostics (lab/x-ray) 

RESPONSE: Dialysis will be the responsibility of the vendor.  All of the other 
services lists above are the responsibility of the County. 

QUESTION: Please confirm that under the new contract, the Contractor will not be 
financially responsible for any of the following services. 

 

 Neonatal or newborn care after actual delivery 

 Cosmetic surgery, including breast reduction 
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 Sex change surgery (including treatment or related cosmetic 
procedures) 

 Contraceptive care including elective vasectomy (or reversal of such) 
and tubal ligation (or reversal of such) 

 Extraordinary and/or experimental care 

 Elective care (care which if not provided would not, in the opinion of 
the Medical Director, cause the inmate’s health to deteriorate or cause 
definite and/or irreparable harm to the inmate’s physical status) 

 Autopsies 

 Any organ (or other) transplant or related costs, including, but not 
limited to labs, testing, pharmaceuticals, pre- or post-op follow-up care, 
or ongoing care related to a transplant, etc. 

 Medications for the treatment of bleeding disorders, including, but not 
limited to Factor VIII and IX 

RESPONSE:  

 None  of the  items listed above will  be the responsibility of the 
vendor.   

QUESTION: We are looking for the formula (or other methodology) that the County will 
use to evaluate, rank, and assign scoring points to bidders’ prices. For 
example, a formula commonly used in other correctional health care bid 
evaluations is as follows. 

 
Lowest price of all proposals ____________________________      x      # 
points possible for Price component      =      Price Score  
Price of proposal being evaluated 

RESPONSE: The maximum points available low cost in this proposal is 20 points. 

Points available after that are pro-rated as follows: 

Low Cost/Next Low Cost x 20 = Available. 

Example:  If the following costs were submitted as follows. 

Low Cost       /   Low Cost  x  20  =  Cost Points 

$100,000 /   $100,000    x  20  =  20 

$100,000      /    $200,000   x  20  =  10 
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$100,000     /    $300,000    x  20 =   6.60 

 
QUESTION: How will the County assign scores and/or relative ranking to bidders’ 

submitted prices? 

RESPONSE: Each proposal will be evaluated by a committee of five; and each 
evaluator will rate the proposal according to the responses to the 
evaluation criteria for that area. 

 
Evaluation Criteria Weight 

 
Certification of Staff and relative experience 
 

25% 

Performance record 
 

20% 

Clarity and quality of proposal 
 

10% 

Current workload 
  

10% 

Local preference 
 

5% 

Financial Stability 
 

10% 

Cost Proposal 
 

20% 

                                                                   
                                                                       TOTAL POINTS 

 
100% 

 

QUESTION: Please indicate the order of precedence among the solicitation documents 
(e.g., the RFP, initial responses to questions, subsequent responses to 
questions, exhibits and attachments, etc.) so that in case of contradictory 
information among these materials, bidders know which of the conflicting 
data sets to use to create their narratives and calculate their prices.  

RESPONSE: Addendums are number 1 through 4.  No subsequent action is 
required. 

QUESTION: Please confirm that the County is requiring zero (0) paper copies of 
bidders’ proposal submission documents, but only electronic copies, on 
CD media in PDF format. 
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RESPONSE: Number of Copies 

Proposers shall submit one (1) original of the Technical Proposal and five 
(5) copies on CD media in PDF format.  Proposers shall submit one (1) 
original of the Contract Compliance Exhibits with the Technical Proposal 
marked “Original” and one (1) copy in a separate sealed envelope. 
Proposers shall submit one (1) original of the Financial Information with 
the Technical Proposal marked “Original” and one (1) copy in a separate 
sealed envelope.   

 
Proposers shall submit one (1) original and one (1) copy of the Cost 
Proposal in a separate sealed envelope. 
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDUM NO 5.  
   
The undersigned proposer acknowledges receipt of this addendum by returning one (1) 
copy of this form with the proposal package to the Purchasing Department, Fulton 
County Public Safety Building, 130 Peachtree Street, Suite 1168, Atlanta, Georgia 
30303 by the RFP due date and time  April  14, 2010, 11:00 A.M. 
 
 
This is to acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. , __________ day of ____________, 
2010. 
 
________________________________ 
Legal Name of Bidder 
 
       
________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
 
________________________________ 
Title 
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The undersigned proposer acknowledges receipt of this addendum by returning one (1) 
copy of this form with the proposal package to the Purchasing Department, Fulton 
County Public Safety Building, 130 Peachtree Street, Suite 1168, Atlanta, Georgia 
30303 by the RFP due date and time  April 14,  2010, 11:00 A.M. 
 
 
This is to acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. , __________ day of ____________, 
2010. 
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Legal Name of Bidder 
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Signature of Authorized Representative 
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